BIWSE INDUSTRIES

How to Get Your Users to Love Salesforce

A Three-part Guide to Help Simplify and Optimize Your Lightning Experience





Contents

How Deep Is Your Love for Salesforce?	3
Part 1: Simplify Your Lightning Apps	4
Begin With the End in Mind	4
Let's Get Hypothetical	5
Organize Tabs Based on Workflow, Left to Right	6
Hide Unnecessary Tabs	6
Multiple, Complex Workflows = Multiple Apps	7
It's That Easy?	7
Part 2: Optimizing Pages Within Lightning Apps	B
Define Standards for All Objects	9
Lightning Page Templates	9
Tabs	9
Buttons 10	D
Rich Text Components10	D
Paths1	1
Part 3: Maximizing Your Page Layouts Experience	2
Standards for Creating Page Layouts	3
Sections 13	3
Field Arrangement1	3
Field Properties14	4
One-Column vs. Two-Column Layouts	4
Blank Spaces1	5
Put It Together1	5
Buttons and Actions1	6
Where to Start1	7
About Bitwise Industries 18	B

How Deep Is Your Love for Salesforce?

Though sometimes you hate to admit it, your users have a love/hate relationship with Salesforce. Your vocal users have told you why they feel Salesforce is challenging. Your articulate users have also told you why they feel Salesforce is not worth the effort. But you've addressed their issues and won them over—so let's do more of that!

In this three-part handy dandy guide, we'll walk through a few simple tricks to help you increase the adoption and satisfaction of your users. Depending on the size and structure of your organization, implementing these ideas may seem complicated, but we'll address that as well.

Overall, we want to help more people love Salesforce and get the most out of Lightning Experience and the other tools they are investing in.

You probably wouldn't say you love a CRM or Salesforce, and we understand. However, achieving that feeling has significant rewards to both users and the business. It's worth the effort to find that lovin' feelin'.

Did you know?

Deeper love = deeper adoption. Forty-two percent of organizations who tried to make Salesforce their system of record couldn't—because their users were consistently keeping information in other tech tools instead.

(Source: https://cloudingo.com/download-benchmarks/)

Part 1: Simplify Your Lightning Apps

If your users can't find it, they can't use it.

BEGIN WITH THE END IN MIND

We wish we could take credit for that, but you know we can't. Stephen Covey's second habit in his 7 Habits of Highly Effective People is a hidden gem for Salesforce adoption. The principle speaks to having purpose and direction—knowing where you're going before you step out the door. More specifically, your team should consistently know where you are all headed together and why.

There are three parts to achieving this, so let's take them in reverse.

- 1. The "why" is achieved by understanding needs. Look at the needs of the business, the team, and individuals. This clarity will allow better triaging, more thoughtful building, and will help achieve the desired outcome.
- 2. The "where" is achieved by leading the team to clarify how, when, and where changes should be made to achieve what the "why" requires.
- 3. Helping the team "consistently know" will require some prominent visuals and signposts that align with your unique business culture and personality.

When you meet with your end users, truly seek to understand their needs. Use active listening and communicate their needs back to them to ensure complete understanding. Given terminology differences and communication challenges, the best way to achieve clarity is using visual tools like mockups, diagrams, and process flows. Miro is one great option, though many exist. Gaps in understanding mean gaps in the build—and these gaps can easily occur as the staff and project team change over time

(As an aside, also check out Stephen Covey's third habit, "Put First Things First" to help manage the flood of requests.)

Disclaimer: It's not uncommon to have stringent approval and change management processes, especially in large or complex organizations. Before you begin, talk to your manager about these processes to understand what's coming. Follow that process exactly.

LET'S GET HYPOTHETICAL

Brian is on the sales team. He follows up on leads that come in through the company's website and manages a pipeline of deals. Brian finds it challenging to use Salesforce, and everyone in the company knows it.



ff "It slows me down. I get paid to sell."

"I don't need to put anything in Salesforce. I keep it all in my head. Go ahead. Test me."

You meet with Brian to understand his concerns and complaints. He explains his workflows.



"

"Don't even get me started on opportunities. I keep all my deals in a spreadsheet. It's straightforward, understandable, and easy. Then I just send it to my manager every Friday."

"

"Anytime I try to create a lead in Salesforce, it's too slow. I have to click on 'leads', then 'new lead'. Then I have to enter way too much information."

You start to realize this is probably more perception than an actual issue with Salesforce, but Brian's busy and you don't want to get in his way. Here's how you can help Brian:

ORGANIZE TABS BASED ON WORKFLOW, LEFT TO RIGHT

Now that you understand Brian's workflows, this will be easy. Out of the box, Salesforce provides the following:

-						All 🔻	Q Search Sa	llesforce	
Sales	Home	Leads 🗸	Accounts 🗸	Contacts 🗸	Opportur	nities 🗸	Reports 🗸	Dashboards 🗸	Chatter

In meeting with Brian, you find he doesn't even need half of this information. His primary workflow only entails leads, accounts, contacts, and opportunities.



After a few simple clicks, you transform the Sales Lightning app, making it more usable:



HIDE UNNECESSARY TABS

Following the tabs Brian will need, you notice Salesforce has wonderfully provided many more. Let's simplify.



Much better. If we can get Brian to use Salesforce rather than his spreadsheet to track his deals, we can build exactly the report he needs to present to his manager every Friday. Then we'll schedule it so Brian doesn't even have to do that task (but that's a different conversation for a different day). More time for selling!

MULTIPLE, COMPLEX WORKFLOWS = MULTIPLE APPS

Brian came back with a new requirement. Because of his interactions with customers, he is part of a committee that handles product management. The committee meets every other Friday to talk through customer requests and prioritize them for the development teams. He'd like you to create that workflow as well.

Rather than cramming these additional tabs into his existing Sales app, we can easily build out a second app for product management and assign it to Brian through a permission set (since the whole Sales team won't need it). Here's what we end up with:



Now Brian can easily toggle back and forth between his apps and stay focused on his work.



IT'S THAT EASY?

Yes. These are just a few simple changes that can be made to your Lightning apps to streamline your org for end users. With so many configuration options, it's easy to over-engineer Salesforce. Keep it simple!

Did you know?

By using the app launcher—that waffle-esque symbol at the top right hand corner of your Salesforce home page—Brian is able to view all of the apps that have become available to him, further streamlining his workflow.

Part 2: Optimizing Pages Within Lightning Apps

In part one, we discussed how to leverage Lightning apps to help your users by minimizing the noise in Salesforce. We talked about Brian, that vocal sales guy, who struggled to adopt Salesforce. But he started using it more thanks to a few simple changes to his Lightning apps.

Part two focuses our attention on the individual pages within the Lightning app. Salesforce has released several notable components for these pages:

- **Lightning Page Templates** Control the general layout of the Lightning page with sections to house your Lightning components.
- **Lightning Components** Organize data elements effortlessly into a Lightning page template.
- **Dynamic Lightning Pages** Show/hide individual components so each user sees exactly what they need to see when they need to see it. Each of these options are configurable to the nth degree, and with so many configuration options to discuss, let's focus on a few concepts. The configurations will fall into place.

In part three, we dive into maximizing page layouts.



DEFINE STANDARDS FOR ALL OBJECTS

Change is difficult for most of your users. So minimize change by defining a standard template and component layout for all objects in your org. You'll make navigation a breeze for users with any level of experience.

LIGHTNING PAGE TEMPLATES

Change is difficult for most of your users. So minimize change by defining a standard template and component layout for all objects in your org. You'll make navigation a breeze for users with any level of experience.



TABS

With tabs on Lightning pages, you can maximize the visible screen space, and organize information into consistent, coherent, thoughtful panes. Too many tabs? Try nesting tabs! Just as you did with the templates, choose a standard tab order to use across all objects in your org.



BUTTONS



With so many standard and custom buttons on your record pages, it's easy for these to become cluttered too. Arrange your buttons so the most commonly used ones are readily available, and the rest can be accessed through the drop-down menu. (These buttons need to be cleaned up too, but we'll cover that in Part 3: Page Layouts.)

Build Training Information Right Into Salesforce

RICH TEXT COMPONENTS

Using a simple Lightning component, you can teach your users exactly how to use Salesforce. Simply drag a rich text component onto your template and create your training documentation.

Details	Contacts	Reports	Activity	Related			
Activity Log all your cust • New Task - S • New Event • Log a Call - , • Email - Cond	tomer interactions in Set yourself a To-Do f Schedule a time-bo As soon as you hang nect to your corporat	n one place. for a future da und Activity fo up with a cust te account and	te. r a specific date/time. omer, note your interac l send email without eve	tion. en leaving Salesforce!			
New Task	New Event	Log a Call	Email				

PATHS

Now available on any Salesforce object, a path will allow your users to successfully move through a defined business process, like stages of an opportunity or phases of a project. Most importantly, they can be configured with 'key fields' and 'guidance for success'.

- **Key fields** Which fields are most important for the user to access during the current stage or which fields are required to move to the next stage (insert validation rule for extra data quality).
- **Guidance for success** How will your user collect this data? What questions should your user ask the customer to move to the next stage? Include it all here in a rich text field!

Prospecting	Qualification	Needs Analysis	Value Proposition	Id. Decision Makers	Perception Analysis	Proposal/Price Qu	Negotiation/Review	Closed	✓ Mark Stage as Complete			
Key Fields				Edi	Guidance for Succes	is						
Amount \$75,000.00					1. What's the business	problem you're trying to	o solve?					
Close Date 7/26/2019					2. What's prompting you to solve it now? 3. What has prevented you from trvine to solve the problem until now?							
Next Step												
Main Competitor(s)												

Filter Components Like a Champ!

One of the great features Salesforce has included with their Lightning pages is the ability to filter components. This feature has several incredible uses to explore:

- Allow users to hide training tips If you build training tips into rich text components, give your users the ability to toggle them off and on.
- Display screen flows based on a record status Do you have processes for one department to hand off work to the next? For example, how does your sales team notify your service team when a deal closes? Try placing a screen flow Lightning component with pertinent information that only displays when the opportunity is closed.
- Make Lightning page management easier Once you've created standard layouts, merge multiple functional groups into a few Lightning pages by filtering components based on the user's role or profile. Cool note for those migrating from Classic: Lightning record pages utilize the classic page layouts you know and (hopefully) love. Lightning record pages won't give your users access to fields, related lists, or buttons they don't already have. We'll explore that more in Part 3: Page Layouts.

Part 3: Maximizing Your Page Layouts Experience

Part one and part two of this three-part guide brought to light some simple changes you can make to Lightning apps and Lightning record pages, respectively, to reduce the noise your Salesforce users' experience and increase their adoption of the technology.

The focus of these three parts is to walk through how administrators can make small adjustments to the user interface that will help make Salesforce a more usable tool for all end users. Your end users won't just appreciate it, they'll love it.

For the final part of our three-part guide, let's take a look at maximizing the value in your page layouts. These page layouts are consistent between classic and the Lightning Experience, so whether you've been on Lightning for a while or still getting used to it, this will feel familiar.

In Lightning, the details component of a Lightning record page pulls in the loggedin user's assigned page layout into Lightning. This means a single Lightning record page can be used to accommodate multiple out-of-the-box classic page layouts.



STANDARDS FOR CREATING PAGE LAYOUTS

As with Lightning record pages, it's important to define standards for how you create page layouts. This will help you more quickly, effectively, and efficiently manage your pages and empower your end users with thoughtful, consistent layouts.

SECTIONS

Field Arrangement

One easy time-management concept is the idea of "grouping similar tasks together." Why not do the same with page layouts? Here are a few questions to ask:

- Are fields organized with similar fields grouped into sections or are they all in a single section?
- Does the order of those fields make sense from a user-workflow perspective?

As you know, Salesforce will place any new fields at the bottom of the first section, labeled simply "Information." Move things around and make life easier on your end users.

Account Information (He	ader visible on edit only)		
\star 🔎 Account Name	Sample Text	Account Owner	Sample Text
Parent Account	Sample Text	Rating	Sample Text
Account Number	Sample Text	Phone	1-415-555-1212
Туре	Sample Text	Fax	1-415-555-1212
Ownership	Sample Text	Website	www.salesforce.com
Company Information			
Ticker Symbol	Sample Text	Employees	28,845
Industry	Sample Text	Annual Revenue	\$123.45
Company Information 2	Header not visible)		
Company Vision	Sample Text		
Address Information			
Billing Address	Suite 300, The Landmark @ One Market San Francisco, CA 94105 US	Shipping Address	Suite 300, The Landmark @ One Market San Francisco, CA 94105 US
System Information		-	
🔒 Created By	Sample Text	🔒 Last Modified By	Sample Text

Field Properties

Once your Field Arrangements are in place and your tasks are grouped together for maximum efficiency, Field Properties can help create an org where your users are always adding necessary information, with nothing slipping through the cracks. By clicking the wrench on any field, Field Properties can be opened. In Field Properties, admins can make a field required or read-only, making sure that end users have access to the information they need to enter, and that other information isn't tampered with.

Setup Home Obj	of Hanger Sci.											
Sthr - 0407 MANDO												
	See 7 Sections from	and a Transell grow		pool The plan Team	-		-					
etais-	Factor 0	Quant first lives for										
All & Policianity.	Robust Camer Linio	- Carlos	Autorea Carrow Autorea Descent Super-					Parallel Constant.		AC Description Trades Aprilat		
pe Layouta	Bandl Achieve Britishe (L. Lajimong Anderey	Annual Service	Accuration Accurations	OwnerProperty L.	Com.com/des com/constant	End Enderstein	Los Businesis Describe	Factor Reason Partie Reason	Property Address Biologia	ine .		
Heiring Record Pages	Roshituto T											
tore, Links, and Arbors.				100			In Barriele New Por				8. C	
repart Caprolis												
d Sen												
ect similar	• • A	Salos Not Salos for			Field Pro	ertes		*				
and Types	· Append Research	14260.000			_		ferred protei		-			
fiel Lookap Miles	Contraction New York	Rampa Date				7.94						
ech Liynufri		NAME AND ADDRESS				08	Cancel					
tites Italian Capital	(analysis)	Annya lari										
tansity Columns	Applease information to a	Suite 2010 The London at a	(inclusion)				International Solution (Secondary of Decidents)					
(pers		18										
e lingpers	Roman Information	1000 Md					a Lorenza	tation interest				
dation Hales	Contractate management				and the second se					un finne -		

One-Column vs. Two-Column Layouts

When creating a section in a page layout, you choose between one-column and two-column layouts. In many situations, choosing which layout is relatively simple, but here are a few pointers:

Section Name	New Section					
Display Section Header On	✓ Detail Page					
	C Edit Page					
Layout	Tab-key Order					
🔵 1-Column 💽 2	-Column O Left-Right Top-Do	wn				

- One-column layout If you've got a text area field with large amounts of text, use a one-column layout. Your users will thank you.
- Two-column layout This layout works great for most field types, but also consider your Lightning page build. Is the section going into a sidebar or main column? A two-column layout won't work very well in a sidebar.

When in doubt, try something. It's easy enough to change, so experiment.

For better results, involve your end users. At the end of the day (and this is true for all things), if your build doesn't match your end user expectations and workflow, you've got more work to do.

Blank Spaces

Blank spaces are little gems in page layouts that allow you to truly tailor the end user experience to provide a better flow of information. Strategically placed, they can do a ton for your end users.

Put It Together

Putting all three of these together, you can build a great experience for your users.

Company Information Ticker Symbol	Sarroin Test		Employees	28.845	
Industry	Sample Text		Annual Revenue	\$123.45	
iompany Information 2	(Header not visible)				
Company Vision	Sample Text				
 Company I 	Information				
Talas Combal			Ferelesses		
Ticker Symbol			Employees		
ABI			8,000		
Industry			Annual Reven	ue	
Healthcare			\$2,000,000		
Company Vision					
Lorem ipsum o non arcu efficit fermentum pla	lolor sit amet, consectetur adipisci cur, viverra condimentum nisl. Null acerat. Nam viverra lobortis porta. 4	ng elit. Integer vel justo lacus. N a eleifend ornare arcu, a pretiu Cras at aliquet erat. Proin tincid	lunc elementum m mi rhoncus neo unt eleifend est, :	ligula ut placerat congue. Vestibulum urna sem, sollicitu c. Donec a facilisis tellus, eget dictum tortor. Proin conval a semper nisi sodales vitae. Vivamus placerat iaculis tristi	din lis ique
Duis sed pulvir	iar tortor. Nunc dapibus nisl vel sei	mper tincidunt. Integer laoreet	non massa sit am	net sagittis. Aenean sed risus eu nulla ullamcorper pharet	ra.
AP	and an information and an information of the second second second	A Recollisian of a second state of a second		and the defendance of the strength of the stre	
Aliquam place	rat venicula eros, vitae interdum du	ul racilisis sit amet. Ut molestie	leo luctus, mattis	nisi at, mingilia augue. Vestibulum quis diam vitae risus	
	itesque. Vivamus metus mauris, fe	ugiat quis tincidunt at, euismoi	a sed sem. Praese	ent mollis lacus lacus, vitae sagittis lectus placerat a.	
pharetra peller					



- One favorite trick is to combine two-column and one-column layouts with a single, visible header.
- In a scenario where you need to combine several fields, some of which are text area fields, create a section but hide the header from the detail and edit views.
- One consideration: tab key order. For your two-column sections, utilize the left-right tab order and your users will never know there are two sections.

Dynamic Forms

As Lightning record pages evolve, so does the user experience. Included in the Winter 2021 release, Dynamic Forms were added to include the ability to configure record detail fields and sections inside the Lightning App Builder.

This feature is widely available amongst editions and helps migrate the fields and sections from your page layout as individual components into the Lightning App Builder. When this happens, they can be configured just like the rest of the components on the page while giving users access to only the fields and sections necessary.

How does it work? A new Fields tab in the component palette contains Field and Field Section components, which are the building blocks for Dynamic Forms. To get started, open an existing record page in the Lightning App Builder, click Upgrade Now from the Record Detail properties pane to launch the Dynamic Forms migration wizard, adding fields and field sections to the page for your users.

BUTTONS AND ACTIONS

Here are a few quick tips for button and action management in Salesforce Lightning:

• Buttons and actions are controlled through mobile and Lightning actions on your page layout. The first step is to click 'override the predefined actions'. This will give you access to customize the button layout.

Salesforce Mobile and Lightning Experience Actions

Actions in this section are predefined by Salesforce. You can override the predefined actions to set a customized list of actions on Lightning Experience and mobile app pages that use this layout. If you customize the actions in the Quick Actions in the Salesforce Classic Publisher section, and have saved the layout, then this section inherits that set of actions by default when you click to override.

- Group similar buttons together. There are three types of buttons and actions available in this part of the page layout:
 - Record actions (edit, clone, delete, etc.)
 - Chatter actions (post, file, question, etc.)
 - Activity actions (new task, log call, email, etc.)

It will make managing these buttons a lot easier if you group them together.

Salesforc	e Mobile and	Lightning E	xperience	Actions i					
Edit	Delete	Post	File	Link	Question	Poll	Log a Call	New Task	Email

 Remove unnecessary buttons. If your users are not able to clone or delete a record, remove it from the page layout. Default buttons also include New Lead, New Opportunity, etc. These aren't always appropriate for every object. Make a thoughtful decision about what to keep and what to remove.

Where to Start

Your entire org will likely require changes, but at a minimum each Lightning app should be evaluated. There's no right answer about where to start, but just pick a spot and dive in.

- 1. Meet with your end users to understand their workflows and listen to what they say.
- 2. Start at the Lightning app and evaluate the tabs. Build separate apps for each workflow.
- 3. Create standard-based record pages with built-in training documentation.
- 4. Organize your page layouts into end-user-focused sections. Manage buttons and actions to ensure appropriate workflow and data quality.

Sales Home Leads v Accounts v Contacts v	All v Q. Search Salesforce Opportunities v Reports v Dashboards v Chatter	** ≣ ? ¤ # ® ∕
Account Abbott426 Inc	ULT MANNA JAME JANSEN EZZZEN ULT MANNA JAME JANSEN EZ	+ Follow Edit 💌
Type Phone Website Prospect 555-5555 www.abbott.inc	Account Owner Account Site Industry Industry Industry Image: Marcount Cover Home Office	
Details Contacts Reports Activity	Related	Activity Chatter
Account Name Abbott426 Inc Dates Account	Account Owner	New Task New Event Log a Call Email
Abbott358 Inc	Warm	Create a task Add
Account Number AA23	Phone 555-555-5555	
Type Prospect	Fax 555-5556	Filters: All time - All activities - All types
Ownership Public	Website www.abbott.inc	✓ Upcoming & Overdue
✓ Company Information		No next steps. To get things moving, add a task or set up a meeting.
Ticker Symbol	Employees	
Industry Healthcare	Annual Revenue 52,000,000	Past meetings and tasks marked as done show up here.
Company Non Lorm (spann door s) amet, consecteur adjoking eli. Integer velj non arcu efficitu, vierer condimentum nist. Nula elefred orane a remensum piezera. Nam vieren isoberi oprat. Coa sa ta iniçuet erat. Duis es publicar tortor. Nunc dabbu nisi vel emper tinckint. The Aliquen piezera teholor en vier, viere interdum da facilita si amet. piberto petersegae. Vierema metan manufi, negalico da facilita si Meseras oriz en, carres esto da que, publica scoman nunc. El		
 Address Information 		

Salesforce is a powerful platform in which your company has invested heavily to capture the data it needs to make well-informed decisions. But none of that works if people don't use it. It's your job to ensure the system is usable, and it is absolutely an art form. Build something you can be proud of and your end users will love!

About Bitwise Industries



Bitwise Industries builds tech economies in underestimated cities, driving digital transformation through Salesforce, DocuSign, and digital product development.

Our technology professionals have deep experience applying cutting-edge technology solutions to help government and privatesector enterprise clients navigate the technology landscape to optimize their organizations.

Leverage our Salesforce management services to ensure your Salesforce org serves your evolving business requirements and not the other way around. From object configuration to custom coding, we've got you covered. Have questions about Salesforce optimization? We'd love to hear from you!

Contact Us: 866.442.0472 bitwiseindustries.com techservices@bitwiseindustries.com



